
 
 

ANNUAL MEMBER MEETING 
MATERIALS AND EXHIBITS 

Table of Contents 
 
 

1. 2025 Annual Meeting Agenda  
 

1 

2. Minutes of the 2024 Annual Meeting of Lutheran 
Services in America 

 

       2 

3. Financial Report for FY 2024, July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2024.  
The Independent Auditor’s Report and Associated 
Financial Statements for Lutheran Services in America 

 

          6  

4. Report of the Governance Committee to the 
Membership of Lutheran Services in America with 
Biographical Information on the Chief Executive Officer 
Board Member Nominee 

 
5. Proposed Lutheran Services in America Budget for FY 

2026 
 

    30 
 
 
 

31 

6. Lutheran Services in America Board of Directors Roster, 
January 2025 
 

35 

 



Annual Member Meeting January 28, 2025 
MEETING AGENDA 

AGENDA FOR ANNUAL MEETING AND AWARD CEREMONY 

Tuesday, January 28 12:00 PM to 1:30 pm EST 
CEO Summit 

I. Call to Order
Colleen Frankenfield, Chairperson, Board of Directors, Lutheran Services in
America, Incorporated

II. Opening Prayer
Rev. Chris SInger, President & CEO of Lutheran Church Charities

III. This is what happens when come together
Alesia Frerichs, President and CEO Lutheran Services in America

IV. Approval of Agenda
Colleen Frankenfield

RECOMMENDED ACTION
That the Agenda for the 2025 Lutheran Services in America Annual
Meeting be approved as presented.

V. Minutes of the January 30, 2024 Lutheran Services in America Annual Meeting
Colleen Frankenfield

RECOMMENDED ACTION
That the Minutes of the 2024 Lutheran Services in America Annual
Meeting be approved as presented.

VI. Report of the Chairperson
Colleen Frankenfield

Financial Report for Lutheran Services in America Fiscal Year 2024

Report of the Governance Committee

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

That Damyn Kelly be elected to a first term on the Board of Directors beginning
July 1, 2025.

VII. Lutheran Services in America Fiscal Year 2026 Budget

1



Annual Member Meeting January 28, 2025 
MEETING AGENDA 

Colleen Frankenfield 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

That the Lutheran Services in America Fiscal Year 2025 Budget be 
adopted as presented

VIII. Presentation of Fifth Annual Lutheran Services in America Leadership
Awards.

IX. Closing Prayer
Deacon Nancy J. Ackerman, CFRE
President and CEO California Lutheran Homes Foundation

X. Adjournment of Meeting
Colleen Frankenfield

2



Annual Member Meeting January 28, 2025 
MINUTES OF THE 2024 ANNUAL MEETING 

Minutes of the 2024 Annual Meeting
Of the Membership of Lutheran Services in America, Incorporated

Tuesday, January 30, 2024/ 12:15 PM to 1:30 PM EST 
CEO Summit

I. Call to Order

Ms. Colleen Frankenfield, Chairperson of Board of Directors of the Lutheran 
Services in America, welcomed the attendees to the Annual Meeting. She 
announced the presence of a quorum and called the Meeting to order at 12:15
PM. 

II. Opening Prayer

John Moeller, President and CEO of Inspiritus gave the opening prayer. 
III. Approval of Agenda
Motion ADOPTED 

That the Agenda for the 2024 Lutheran Services in America Annual Meeting be 
approved as presented. 

IV. Minutes of the January 24, 2023 Lutheran Services in America Annual
Meeting

Motion   ADOPTED 
That the Minutes of the 2023 Lutheran Services in America Annual Meeting be 

approved as presented.  

V. Report to the Chairperson

Ms. Colleen Frankenfield provided a brief report of the Chairperson. 

VI. Financial Report for the Lutheran Services in America Fiscal Year 2023

Ms. Colleen Frankenfield, reported on the Lutheran Services in America financial 
report for FY 2023. She noted that the audited financial statements were provided in 
the Annual Meeting section of the program. The independent auditing firm, 
CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, performed an audit of Lutheran Services in America as of 
June 30, 2023 and 2022.  

The audit represented a clean opinion with no material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. No internal control letters were issued. The Audit Committee 
membership consisted of Jeff Thiemann (Chair), Eric Gurley, Bill Andrews, and 
outside members, Chris Reighard, SVP Finance and Planning, Allegheny Lutheran 

3



Annual Member Meeting January 28, 2025 
MINUTES OF THE 2024 ANNUAL MEETING 

Social Ministries and Kirby Nickerson, Chief Financial Officer, Lutheran Services 
Carolinas. 

VII. Report of the Governance Committee

Colleen Frankenfield referenced the Annual Meeting materials and on behalf 
of the Board of Directors brought the following motions that were moved 
and seconded: 

Motion   ADOPTED
That David Trost be elected to a first term on the Board of Directors

beginning July 1, 2024, and David Duea to a first full-term beginning July 1, 
2024. David completed the remainder of an unexpired term from October 

2021 to June 2024.

VIII. Lutheran Services in America Fiscal Year 2025 Budget
Colleen Frankenfield presented the Lutheran Services in America FY 2025
Budget. She referenced the proposed budget provided to the membership in
the Annual Meeting materials.
He noted the proposed revenue for FY 2025 is $6.64 million with expenses of
$6.62 million for a positive net income of $18,200. The budget includes no
increase in member dues. The Board of Directors recommended the FY 2025
budget, as presented, to the Lutheran Services in America membership for
approval.
Colleen Frankenfield received no questions from the Membership on the
Lutheran Services in America FY 2025 Budget
A motion to approve the Fiscal Year 2025 Budget was moved and seconded.

Motion ADOPTED
That the Lutheran Services in America Fiscal Year 2025 Budget be adopted 

as presented.

IX. Presentation of the Fourth Annual Lutheran Services in America
Leadership Awards

Alesia Frerichs, President and CEO of Lutheran Services in America welcomed 
and thanked the members for attending the 2024 Lutheran Services in 
America Annual Membership Meeting. 

Lutheran Services in America continued a new tradition that was launched in 
2021, to recognize three distinguished members in the network for their 

4



Annual Member Meeting January 28, 2025 
MINUTES OF THE 2024 ANNUAL MEETING 

exceptional work and leadership and for exemplifying the network’s core 
values.

Alesia Frerichs then introduced Dan Brown and Blake Brown of the Lutheran Church 
Extension Fund to present the Third Annual Lutheran Services in America Award 
winners. 

The Innovator Award was presented to Ascentria Cares Alliance and Ms. Angela 
Bovill for its work to focus on first on the client’s well-being, helping vulnerable 
people and families to move forward with dignity and purpose. The Micah Award 
was presented to Sharif Walker and his team at Bethel New Life for its work leading 
the way to advance justice, mercy , equity and inclusion. The Paragon Award: The 
Ken Daly Award for Excellence in Mentorship was presented to Luanne Fisher of 
Liberty Lutheran for assisting other network CEOs and supporting them through 
leadership challenges, offering advice, insights and connection to others. Each 
received a gift from Lutheran Services in America in appreciation of their work and 
service. 

X. Closing Prayer

Rev. Linda Norman, President and CEO of Mission Investment Fund led the 
closing prayer.

XI. Adjournment of the Meeting

Colleen Frankenfield thanked the membership and adjourned the meeting 
at 1:30 pm. 

Respectfully submitted.

Colleen Frankenfield
Chair, Lutheran Services in America Board of Directors

5



6



7



 
 

8



 
 

9



 
 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



 
 

18



19



20



21



 
 

22



23



24



 
 

25



26



27



28



29



January 28, 2025 Annual Member Meeting 
REPORT OF THE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

Report of the Governance Committee 
to the Membership of Lutheran Services in America 

at the Annual Meeting:  January 28, 2025 

In accordance with its Bylaws, Lutheran Services in America has a Board of Directors 
consisting of 10 to 13 members that includes: 

Four to six Chief Executive Officers of Lutheran social ministry organizations
elected by the Membership at the Annual Membership meeting
Four to six members elected by the Board of Directors
One representative from the Evangelical Lutheran Church in America and one
representative from The Lutheran Church-Missouri Synod

All Board members except those from the two national church bodies can serve for a 
maximum of two full three-year terms, in accordance with the Bylaws. 

The Governance Committee’s responsibilities include development and 
recommendation to the Membership of a slate of Chief Executive Officer candidates 
from Lutheran social ministry organizations. Pursuant to the Board’s Standing 
Policies, the Committee is assisted by appointed non-Board member Chief Executive 
Officers of Lutheran social ministry organizations. The Committee also identifies and 
recommends candidates for election by the Lutheran Services in America Board of 
Directors. The Governance Committee recommended to the Board of Directors the 
individual identified below as the nominee for election at the Annual Meeting of 
members. 

Chief Executive Officer Nominations for Recommendation to the Lutheran 
Services in America Membership  

The Board of Directors recommends that Damyn Kelly be elected to a first term on 
the Lutheran Services in America Board of Directors beginning July 1, 2025. 

Three-Year Terms July 1, 2025 – June 30, 2028 

Damyn Kelly (First Term) 
 President and CEO, Lutheran Social Services of New York 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Paula Phillippe (Chair) 
David Duea 

Colleen Frankenfield 

30



Annual Member Meeting January 28, 2025
BUDGET PROPOSAL – FY 2026

BUDGET PROPOSAL – FISCAL YEAR 2026
Lutheran Services in America, Incorporated 

January 2025 

Overview 

position. The FY 2026 budget proposes $6,614,700 in revenue and $6,570,400 in 
expenses, resulting in a net income of $44,300. This budget supports LSA's strategic 
mission and priorities in the following ways: 

Building on Innovations: Expanding programs launched in FY 2025, including 
the Housing Solutions Collaborative, Strengthening Families Initiative/- 
Healthcare partnerships, and the Lived Voices Fellowship. 

Broadening Partnerships: Engaging a wider set of partners and additional 
investment sources. 

Conservative Projections: Maintaining operational vitality with conservative 
revenue projections while positioning for growth. 

Highlights of the FY 2026 Budget vs. FY 2025 
Stable Contributions: Unrestricted contributions and program and services 
revenues remain consistent. 

Membership Fees Adjusted.  actual dues revenue in FY23 and FY24 
and the addition of new categories for organizations with 150M+ operating 
expenses.   

 Addition of new funding partners. 

Regrants:  to members primarily through the Rural Aging Action Networks 
(RAAN/MACP) and the Family Stabilization Initiative (FSI/MACP) 

Cash Position 

Net assets to total assets ratio on June 30, 2024 was over 81.57%, and its ratio 
of net assets without donor restriction – the funds over which it has full control 
– was 50.68%. LSA opened Fiscal Year 2025 with more than 100% of its budget
covered by its net assets. Another metric that provides an indication of LSA’s
effective stewardship of funds is its ratio of 2024 program expenses to total
expenses, which was 82.38%.

31



LSA FY 2026 Budget Proposal to the Board (January 2025)  Page 2 of 4 

Reserve Policy Compliance: Maintaining unrestricted cash reserves above the 
target of $1,190,300 for FY 2026. 

Proposed FY 2026 Budget Summary 
The proposed budget details in the following table are presented alongside FY 2024 

-term growth.

32



LSA FY 2026 Budget Proposal to the Board (January 2025)  Page 3 of 4 

Lutheran Services in America
Financial Reports

$(000's)

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2024 2025 2025 2026
Actual Budget Projection Budget

REVENUE
Without Donor Restrictions:

Contributions - Cash
ELCA 347.7   350.0   350.0   350.0   
LCMS 35.0  35.0  35.0  35.0  
Organizations & Individuals 315.9   450.0   450.0   450.0   

Membership Support 944.2   900.0   980.0   975.0   
Programs & Services

Events 208.9   280.0   318.0   265.0   
New Americans Collaborative -  -  48.0  -  
Services delivered & Others 193.5   157.0   169.4   202.6   

Other Sources
Investments 136.8   106.7   104.8   109.3   
Royalties & all other 7.0 - 1.0 -  
Reimbursed expenses 2.8  - - -  
Investment Portfolio -  

Variable Strategic Investment Release -  -  -  -  
Annual Quasi-Endowment Release 110.0   120.1   120.1   142.9   

Sub-total - Without Donor Restrictions 2,301.8  2,398.8  2,576.3  2,529.8  

With Donor Restrictions:
Sub-total With Donor Restrictions 3,774.9  4,237.3  4,704.8  4,084.9  

TOTAL REVENUE 6,076.7 6,636.1 7,281.1 6,614.7 

EXPENSES - Natural Categories
Human Resources

LSA Staff 2,176.4  2,625.6  2,554.2  2,556.5  
Professional Services 973.0   1,587.0  1,681.5  1,332.1  

Sub-total - Human Resources 3,149.4  4,212.6  4,235.7  3,888.6  
Travel 213.0   241.9   187.6   276.2   
Events 180.6   270.1   270.1   274.5   
External Communications & Relationships 55.6  76.7  76.7  87.4  
Office & related 154.1   159.3   159.3   160.7   
Printing & Mailing 18.7  16.5  16.5  21.5  
Telecom & Info. Tech. 117.9   134.2   134.8   124.1   
Financial Expenses 28.8  57.8  61.0  46.1  
All Other Operating Expenses 2.0  5.8 5.8  5.8  
Re-Grant To Members 2,065.1  1,443.0  2,098.9  1,685.5  

TOTAL EXPENSES 5,985.2 6,617.9 7,246.4 6,570.4 

NET -- REVENUES LESS EXPENSES 91.5  18.2  34.7  44.3  

33



LSA FY 2026 Budget Proposal to the Board (January 2025)  Page 4 of 4 

LSA’s Membership Support Structure  

July 1, 2025 – June 30, 2026 

Annual Consolidated Operating 
Expense Budget ($ in millions) 

From the most recently completed fiscal 
year. Total combined budget for all affiliated 

and subsidiary organizations. 

Sustainer

Minimum dues that contribute to our 
shared work

Catalyst
Dues that expand services such as leadership 

development, funding opportunities, advocacy, and 
telling our story more broadly 

< = 1.0 250 350+ 

> 1.0 - 2.5 500 750+ 

> 2.5 - 5.0 750 1,000+

> 5.0 - 7.5 1,500 1,900+

> 7.5 - 10.0 2,200 2,700+

> 10.0 - 15.0 3,200 3,750+

> 15.0 - 20.0 3,750 4,200+

> 20.0 - 30.0 4,700 5,700+

> 30.0 - 40.0 6,430 8,500+

> 40.0 - 50.0 8,300 10,000+

> 50.0 - 60.0 10,200 13,000+

> 60.0 - 70.0 12,000 15,000+

> 70.0 - 80.0 14,000 17,000+

> 80.0 - 90.0 16,000 19,000+

> 90.0 - 100.0 18,000 20,075+ 

> 100.0 - 150.0 20,000  23,000+ 

> 150.0 - 200.0 21,000  25,000+ 

> 200.0 -  250.0 22,055 26,000+ 

> 250.0 - 300.0 26,000 30,000+

300+ 30,000 35,000+

34



BOARD OF DIRECTORS ROSTER
FY 2025 

Lutheran Services in America, Incorporated

Officer Director Name 
Class and Term

Organization Title and 
Postal Address 

Other Contact Info
Voice, Cell, Fax, Email

CHAIRPERSON

Second Term 
2024-2025

MS. COLLEEN FRANKENFIELD 

CEO Member
Term I July 2019 – June 2022

Term II July 2022 – June 2025 

President and CEO 
Lutheran Social Ministries of 

New Jersey 
3 Manhattan Dr. 

Burlington, NJ 08016-4119 

609 699-4101 
484-680-0612 (cell)

609 386-7191 (fax)
 cfrankenfield@lsmnj.org 

VICE
CHAIRPERSON

Second Term 
2024-2025 

MR. ERIC GURLEY

CEO Member
Term I July 2022 – June 2025

President and CEO 
Immanuel

1044 N. 114th Street, Suite 500 
Omaha, NE 68130 

402-547-9594
egurley@immanuel.com

SECRETARY

Second Term 
2024-2025 

DR. KRISTEN GAY

CEO Member
  Term I July 2020 – June 2023
 Term II July 2023 – June 2026 

President and CEO 
Gemma Services  

512 Township Line Road 
Plymouth Meeting, PA 19462 

610-825-4440
KGay@gemmaservices.org 

TREASURER 

Second Term 
2024-2025 

MR. WILLIAM ANDREWS

       Elected Member 
  Term I April 2023 – March 2026

VP and Worldwide Director 
(Ret.)

126 Turvey Ct 
Chapel Hill, NC 27514

570-369-3728 (cell)
wcandrews99@gmail.com 

MS. REGINA BIDDINGS-MURO
Elected Member 

  Term I Jan 2025 – Dec 2027 

Vice President of 
Advancement 

California Lutheran 
University 

60 West Olsen Road #1700 
Thousand Oaks, CA 91360

805-493-3160
rbiddingsmuro@callutheran.edu 

MR. DAVID DUEA

CEO Member 
Term  July 2021 – June 2024 

(Beginning October 2021 to complete 
remainder of unexpired term) 

Term I July 2024 – June 2027 

President & CEO
Lutheran Community 

Services Northwest
4040 S 188th St Ste 300
Seatac, WA 98188-5070 

206-901-1685
253-318-4048 (cell)
DDuea@lcsnw.org

REV. BARBARA LUND

ELCA Member
Term began April 2023 

  Term by Tenure of ELCA Office 

Senior Director, Operations 
and Innovation, ELCA 

Service and Justice Home 
Area 

8765 W. Higgins Road, 
Chicago, IL

1.800.638.3522 x5071 
Barbara.Lund@elca.org 

35



Officer Director Name 
Class and Term 

Organization Title and 
Postal Address 

Other Contact Info 
Voice, Cell, Fax, Email 

DR. ANTONIO M. OFTELIE 

Elected Member 
Term I April 2019 – March 2022 

Term II April 2022 – March 2025 

Executive Director of 
Leadership for a 

Networked World 
Harvard University 

465 Nicollet Mall, 1812 
Minneapolis, MN 55401 

617-909-4173 (cell)
Aoftelie@seas.harvard.edu 

MS. PAULA PHILLIPPE 

Elected Member 
Term I Jan. 2024 – Dec. 2027 

Self-Employed Consultant 
221 1st Ave NE #20 

Minneapolis, MN 55413 

612-730-8443 (cell)
pphillippe62@gmail.com 

REV. MICHAEL W.  MEYER 

LCMS Member 
Term began March 2024 

Term by Tenure of LCMS Office 

Managing Director, LCMS 
The Office of National 

Mission 
1333 S. Kirkwood Road 

St. Louis, MO 63122 

314-526-6421
michael.meyer@lcms.org 

MS. ELIZABETH SULLIVAN 

Elected Member 
Term I April 2024 – March 2027 

Managing Program 
Director (Retired) 

1120 Bedford Rd 
Grosse Pointe Park, MI 48230 

(313) 608-2970
ecsullivan@comcast.net 

REV. JEFFREY D. THIEMANN 

Elected Member 
      Term I July 2020 – June 2023 
     Term II July 2023 – June 2026 

Executive Director 
Church Alliance 

Church Benefits Association 
17225 33rd Ave N. 

Minneapolis, MN 55447 

612-486-2660 (cell)
jthiemann@gmail.com 

MR. DAVID TROST 

CEO Member 
Term  July 2021 – June 2024 

(Beginning March 2024 to complete 
remainder of unexpired term) 
Term I July 2024 – June 2027 

President & CEO 
St. John’s United 
3940 Rimrock Rd 
Billings, MT 59102 

(406) 655-5600
dtrost@stjohnsunited.org 

36

mailto:aoftelie@seas.harvard.edu
mailto:pphillippe62@gmail.com
mailto:dtrost@stjohnsunited.org



